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Report Card 20142015 Page 1 of 1
CCSDY
CLARK COUNTY
SCHOO, DISTRICT

Student information School Information
Student Name  Ferraro, Evan D Schaovd Givens, Linda Rankin ES
Sludant iD 12009962 Principal  Danlel R Hungerford
Track 14-15 Givens ES Phone (702)799-1430
Grade K Addross 655 Park Vista Dr Las Vegas, NV 89138
Teachsr REHBEIN-RENGEL, DAWN CHRISTINE Websile
Grade Scale Special Subjects and Learmner Grade Scale Altendance Summary  Semester 1 Semeaster 2 Total
A 90-100% Behaviors Grade Scale 4 Exceeds Days Enrolled 89 0 89
B 80-89% Exceptional Progress E 3 Mesls Days Absent 7 1] 7
cC T70-79% Satisfaclory Progress S 2 Approaches |Days Tardy 3 Y] 3
I} 60-69% Needs Improvement 1 Emergent [EariyOut 0 ] 9
F  0-59%
CONTENT AREAS SEMESTER | SEMESYER SUCCESSFUL LEARNER BEHAVIORS 1
3 2 ‘Observes School Rules [
Language ‘Foilows Tlassroom Rules 5
OuerallGrade” =TT 2 i Foliows Directions -3
fAathematics "Accepis Réspansibaily g
Overall Grade 3 ‘Works Indapandantly 3
"Cauniing and Cardinalily k| ‘Warks Codperaiively ]
Oparations and Algebrale Thinklng Completas and Retums Homawark on 5
"Numbers 2nd Operationsin @asa tan || Time 2%
“Teasirement and Data e 2 "Ciigliy 67 Work S |
Geometry 3 SEMESTER 1 CORNMENTS i
Readlfig £Van 13 progresaing nicely in kindarganten. Goniinued praciice of reading
Overall Grade 3 daily and having him retelt the story in order, including imporiant dstalls,
“Keading Cligraiure 3 would be beneficial. In malh, he maets ali grade lovel standards  Evanis |
Reading Informational Texi a working on corec! spacing, punctualion, capitalization, stretching out
| “Razding Foundational SKIg J words while writing whal he hears, and adding details as well as a closing
SclencolHaalth 10 his stories, He would profit from wiiling al home on a daliy basis about
Qverall Grada 3 1oplcs hat are inlaresting to him so he can work further on these skil's.
“iiatire of Sclénca 3 Als0, he would benefit from additional practice In wriling 1he following
Physical science K] aliars of Ihe alphabet comeclly: b, d, k, M, m, N, 2, p, R, U, Y, and y. While;
“"Earih and Space Science 3 writlng and coloring, he would profil from taking his time and
| Uife Scionce 3 rinting/cofaring neally. Evan s a ehaarlul student who respands readiiy to
Healih 3 praise.
"Soclal Studlas SEMESTER 2 COMMENTS
Overall Grade i 3 ¥
Speaking and Listening
Overall Grade i 3 i
Writin
varall Grade 2 i
SPECIAL SUBJECTS
Ary
Gvérall Grads i £ |
Humanifies
Overall Grade 1 E
Humanities
Ovaerall Grada i E :
Library
Uvarall Grade i E !
Music
I 5 i
TOverall Grade i ) i
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Robert W. Weatherford, Esq.

Nevada Bar Ne7049 q CLERK OF THE COURT
LAW OFFICES OF ERIC ROY

818 East Charleston Boulevard

Las Vegas, NV 89104

2702; 423-3333

702) 924-2517
robert@encrgy]awﬁnn.com
Attorney for Sandra Nance
DISTRICT COURT,
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
SANDRA L. NANCE, | CASENO: D-10-426817-D
DEPT NO: K
Plaintiff,
VS. Date of Hearing: 8/12/2015

Time of Hearing: 10:00 am

CHRISTOPHER M. FERRARO, Oral Argument Requested X Yes  No

Defendant.

PLAINTIFF’S OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANT’S MOTION TO MODIFY
CUSTODY. FOR RELOCATION OF MINOR CHILD. AND OTHER RELATED
RELIEF AND COUNTERMOTION
FOR CONFIRMATION OF PRIMARY PHYSICAL CUSTODIAN:;
MODIFICATION OF CHILD SUPPORT: STRIKE CHRIS* MOTION AS DEFECTIVE;
AND REASONABLE ATTORNEY FEES AND COSTS

COMES NOW Plaintiff, SANDRA L. NANCE (hereinafter referred to as “Sandra”), by
and through her attorney, Robert W. Weatherford, Esq., of the Law Offices of Eric Roy, and
brings this Opposition and Countermotion requesting the following relief:

1. That this Court deny each and every request made by Defendant, CHRISTOPHER M,

FERRARO (hereinafter referred to as “Chris”), in his instant Motion;

2. That this Court confirm Sandra as the Primary Physical Custodian of the parties’ minor

child;
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3. That this Court modify child support to conform with NRS 125B.070(b)(1);
4. That this Court strike Chris’ Motion as defective;
5. That this Court grant Sandra her reasonable attorney fees and costs of at least $7,500; and
6. For such other relief as this Court may deem just and proper under the circumstances.
This Opposition and Countermotion is made and based upon all of the papers, pleadingg
and records on file herein, the Points and Authorities and Affidavits submitted herewith, and any

oral argument at the time of the hearing herein.

DATED this ¥ day of July, 2015.
Law Offices of Eric P. Roy

By: = ? ~
obert WWeatherford, Esq.

Nevada Bar No.: 7949
818 E. Charleston Blvd.
Las Vegas, Nevada 89104
Tel. 57 2; 423-3333

Fax. (702) 924-2517
Attorney for Sandra Nance

L
OPPOSITION
POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
Although the parties to this action, Sandra and Chris, were married for a short duration,
they did date prior to the marriage and some reconciliation attempts were made after and
throughout the instant action. As a result of the relationship, they have one minor child, Evan

Daniel Ferraro, born September 30, 2008.
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On May 6, 2010, this Court initially awarded the parties joint legal custody and|
designated Sandra as temporary primary physical custodian. Subsequently, Chris’ attorney
drafted a Stipulation and Order, which was signed by both parties (Sandra was in proper person)
and filed with this Court on April 8, 2011. This Stipulation and Agreement provided that “the
parties shall share joint legal custody of the infant child with the Mother-being designated the
primary residential parent subject to the Father’s rights of visitation...” Page 7 of 34. Chris’l
visitation was specified as the last full week of the month, the second weekend of the month,
three weeks during the year, four consecutive weeks during the summer, and divided holidays.
Chris further agreed to pay $345 per month for child support which he claimed was 18% of this

gross monthly income. The Stipulation and Order also contains a paragraph labeled relocation

and states, . . . the Father has made living arrangements in the State of Nevada for purposes of

facilitating the timeshare schedule as provided herein...” Page 25 of 34.

At the Case Management Conference on October 12, 2011, this Court referred Evan for
an Outsourced Psychological Evaluation. Among other Orders, this Court Ordered that “The
parties shall FOLLOW the COURT ORDERS.”

Subsequently on November 21, 2011, this Court awarded the parties joint legal and join{
physical custody. This Court further Ordered that Dr. John Paglini perform the child custody
evaluation; that the parties communicate through the Our Family Wizard website; that the parties
have no direct communication; that they each complete the UNLV Cooperative Parenting Class;
and that Chris file a Financial Disclosure Form (“FDF”’) by November 28, 2011. The reason this
Court Ordered no direct contact between the parties is because Chris was harassing Sandra with
emails and text messages that were often crude, disparaging, and sometimes threatening. Several

examples clearly demonstrating harassment were attached to Sandra’s pleadings.
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On November 30, 2011, Chris filed his FDF indicating that his gross monthly incomg
was $700 with $1,300 in self employment income. Although his FDF only contained pages 1, 2
and 7, he did attach a copy of a pay stub to verify his income. However, approximately two
weeks later, on December 16, 2011, Chris filed another FDF indicating his gross monthly
income was $1,675 with $1,300 in self employment income. Same employer.

On January 4, 2012 this Court issued a Minute Order that Chris is to pay for Dr. Paglini’s
evaluation and set his child support at $201.50 per month pursuant to Wright v. Osburn.
Interestingly, Chris filed his most recent FDF with this Court on July 15, 2015, indicating that he
has been working at Twin Rinks at Eisenhower, LLC., since November 15, 2012. In Chrs’
instant Motion, he claims to have a minority ownership interest in this company, which is
currently in Chapter 11, Bankruptcy. Regardless he claims, he will be able to earn a substantial
amount of income. Selfishly, he failed to update his FDF when he obtained this job / ownership
interest and failed to increase his child support as he earns well in excess of $100,000 per year,
Chris’ year to date gross income, as of May 31, 2015, was $57,692.28. Five full months
($57,692.28 / 5 = $11,538.46) a gross monthly income of $11,538.48, or a yearly gross monthly
income of $138,461.52.

The parties were before this Court on March 27, 2013 for a return hearing regarding Dr.
Paglini’s report (hereinafter referred to as the “Report”). The Report was very clear in
recommendations. The fist of note, is that Dr. Paglini recommends, based on “...Evan’s best
interest. .. {Chris is]...to have visitation in New York.”! That the parties complete extensive co-
parenting class, use a parenting coordinator, and focus on co-parenting. Dr. Paglini further

makes it clear that Chris should refrain from speaking derogatorily about Sandra and her family

Y See Paglini's Custody Evaluation, p. 61 under Recommendations.

4-
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in front of Evan, “...as he has done before.” Dr. Paglini also noted an issue with Chris

neglecting to keep Sandra informed and admonished that he has a responsibility during times of

emergency “...if he wishes to have joint legal custody.”

Dr. Paglini states unequivocally, “...Evan is extremely young, and it is difficult to
tolerate long periods of time away from the primary caretaker. Although it may be argued that
Mr. Ferraro has shared custody, by history, Ms. Nance has been the primary caretaker.” Dr.
Paglini acknowledges that “...Evan is going to attend school likely in the fall of 2013, or 2014.”7

Dr. Paglini then recommends that Chris’ visitation decrease once school starts to “...having his

son five days after the school year ends, to ten days before the new school year begins.”® Of

course, there are recommended holidays and Sandra is given vacation during Chris’ timeshare. It
is clear that Dr. Paglini is acknowledging Sandra as the historical primary physical custodian, is
recommending that continue, even when Evan begins school.

During the March 27, 2013 hearing, this Court reminded the parties that they need to
attend the UNLYV parenting classes and provided the internet website. Due to the fact that Chris
was not co-parenting, this Court Ordered, based on Dr. Paglini’s recommendations, that Chris’
visitation shall take place in Las Vegas for the next four months pending completion of the
UNLV parenting‘ classes.  This Court further adopted and affirmed Dr. Paglini’s
recommendations and assigned Margaret Pickard as a parenting coordinator. The parties were to

address their issues through Ms. Pickard, including Evan’s counseling,.
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Sandra completed the COPE Class on July 17, 2012 and filed her completion. Chris did
not complete the class until February 12, 2015.

The most recent custody order, facilitated by Ms. Pickard, is a Stipulation and Order Re:
Parenting Plan (herecinafter referred to as the “Parenting Plan”), filed with this Court on
November 30, 2012. This Parenting Plan provides that the parties share joint legal and joint
physical custody. At the time the Parenting Plan was negotiated, Chris was residing in New
York and represented to Sandra, as he has before, that he was going to live in Las Vegas. In fact,
paragraph 2.1 reads, “Until such time as the Father permanently relocates to the Las Vegas,
Nevada, area...” Chris is to have 10 days per month starting the third Friday of each month after
school or at 3 pm if Evan is not in school.

The Parenting Plan further provides in paragraph 2.1.2 *. . . that the Father may exercisq
his residential time with the minor child in New York until the child begins Kindergarten in the
Clark County School District.” Paragraph 2.1.2.3 provides that “The parties agree that during
the monthly 10-day visits in New York [which may occur until the child begins elementary
school in the Fall of 2013]...” The brackets are part of the quote and shows that the parties had
at all times agreed that once school started, the monthly traveling to New York would end.
Lastly, paragraph 2.8 states “The parties will begin counseling for Evan with a counselor
provided through HOPE counseling or an alternative provider, agreed by the parties in writing,
Both parents will participate in counseling, as recommended by the child’s therapist.”

Evan’s current therapist is Judith Tollman, and he sees her one time per week and has
been doing so for several years. Ms. Tollman diagnosed Evan with severe anxiety which was
also noted by Dr. Paglini. Unfortunately Evan does not see a therapist during the time that Evan

is with Chris in New York as Chris believes Evan does not need a therapist. However, Chris
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neither has the education background to negate such a diagnosis nor does he have any
professional evidence otherwise. He is simply making a judgment call that suits his particular
wants.

Evan’s anxious condition is believed to be not just a product of the constant travelJ
between New York and Nevada; but also of the stress this young child undergoes being
constantly exposed to Chris’ family’s hostility towards Sandra. Dr. Paglini has on a priot
occasion made reference to the fact that Defendant’s family members are far too involved ﬁvith
Sandra and Chris’ relationship as well as their relationship with Evan. These family members
continuously show up at various events involving Evan, including those in which extended
family would not normally be present. Examples of these include meetings with the school
principal, therapists, and mediator, amongst others.

It is important for this Court to know that although it was previously agreed by the parties
and memorialized in the Parenting Agreement that Evan would start kindergarten in the Clark
County School district in 2013, Chris objected. Ms. Pickard was brought into the discussion,
because Sandra wanted to enroll Evan into kindergarten as contemplated. Attached hereto as
Exhibit 1 is an email exchange between the parties and Ms. Pickard regarding kindergarten.

On May 21, 2013, Ms. Pickard suggested to the parties that, “My proposal to resolve the
current issues is to see if the two of you will agree to enroll Evan in a private Kindergaten. This
will resolve the issues that are in dispute, and allow Evan to have the option of either entering]
into Kindergarten or First Grade through CCSD next year.” On the same day but in a different
email, Ms. Pickard states, “This is a reasonable solution as it accommodates his learning
environment and does not hold him back. Many children who are academically ready but not

emotionally prepared for kindegarten [sic] do this.” However, Chris will not agree to this
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proposal and complains that he and Sandra are being forced to agree on something.

On July 10, 2013 Ms. Pickard notified Chris that “Sandra would like Evan to begin
kindergarten through CCSD for the 2013-2014 school year.” She further states that Sandra is
willing to make some concessions with Chris’ agreement. Chris is opposed to the idea. Chris
unilaterally decides what he will do despite the help and requests of Ms. Pickard. As can be seen
from his emails, on July 10, 2013 he states, “I will make plans as they are for August and if Evan
starts pre k school late then that will be for Sandra to deal with in Las Vegas. Three days later,
he states, “I do not agree to any testing or further testing that will suggest that Evan will skip
kindergarten and attend 1st grade for the 2014-2015 school year.” He then gives Sandra two
options, which are not incorporated in the Parenting Agreement, and threatens, “I will no longer
pay for Evan’s schooling in Las Vegas moving forward.”

Sandra reluctantly agreed to keep Evan back in school although Evan was well within
age, maturity, and educational progress to move forward. However, Evan has recently

completed Kindergarten and despite the Stipulation and Order, Chris continued to travel to New

York with Evan. Sandra became increasingly concerned because Evan was missing a lot of

school and his anxiety increased. As per the Order appointing Ms. Pickard, Sandra brought the

issue to the parenting coordinator. Although Chris in his Motion states that Ms. Pickard *. |

.employed an expedient resolution as opposed to one that balanced the weightier factors off

Evan’s best interests. . .,”” Ms. Pickard reviewed the Clark County School absence policy,
communicated with Evan’s teacher and principal, and Evan’s therapist and concluded that each
party would be allowed five (5) absences during the school year.

Chris “... will be the first to admit that he was a terrible co-parent in the beginning. . .”

but then places all the blame on Sandra because her other children’s fathers are not involved. Hg
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does remind this Court that he took the 19-hour co-parenting program and says that when he tries
to co-parent, Sandra mistakes this for harassment. However, a screen shot of the interactions nof
only between the parties, but with Ms. Pickard, indicate that Chris is not co-parenting at all. Still.

Attached hereto as Exhibit 2, are emails sent between the parties and Ms. Pickard
regarding Evan missing school. All of these emails were provided in Chris’ Appendix to his
Motion. On October 9, 2014, Ms. Pickard emailed the parties indicating that she had spoken to
Ms. Tolman, who “indicated that school is important for Evan, both academically, socially, and
emotionally. Therefore, it is crucial that he attend school regularly, even in kindergarten.”)
Further she states, “Judith does not recommend that Evan be removed from school early on
Fridays or for extended periods of time, as this distances him from school activities and his
social interactions. Essentially, Judith notes that for “Evan to be successful in school, he needs
to be in school.”

Although both, Ms. Pickard and Ms. Tolman, considered Evan’s best interests and
suggested that Evan remain in Las Vegas for Chris’ visitation, on October 10, 2014, Chris emails
Ms. Pickard (and Sandra) saying “...all you seemed focused on are words on a piece of paper...’]
and that neither she “...or Judith are going to tell me this is wrong for Evan? Not a chance!” He
then states, “My timeshare in October will be in New York.” He goes further and states:

Judith is NOT court ordered and I never agreed to this and in the
SAOQ it states that both parties need to agree on paper to counseling
and I do not have to follow her recommendations. This is a one

sided case and I will enroll Evan in counseling in New York if
need be to challenge what Judith feels.

Kindergarten is not required in Nevada and 1 pay for his full day
schooling. 1 will be calling Dan Hungerford [Evan’s school
principal] and canceling my payment plan for Evan’s full day
schooling and ask that Evan is put into half day schooling.
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I'm exhausted from this and tired of proving myself. I will be
picking Evan up in October on Friday to fly to New York. Judith
is not court ordered and I told her to her face that I do not agree
with counseling and have never agreed to counseling from day 1,
the school cant stop me, Sandra will be interfering with my
timeshare if she involves herself and tries to disrupt my pick up.

Chris’ co-parenting is not done. On October 18, 2014 at 10:00 am, Chris again emails
Ms. Pickard (and Sandra) stating:

I spoke with Dan Hungerford (principal) and Givens Elementary
School Accounting Department and effective immediately I will be
forced to withdraw Evan from Full Day Kindergarten with Mrs.
Rengel and will be canceling payment and putting Evan into Half
Day Kindergarten.

Sandra will be notified by the school and will be updated with all
other details involved.

Evan will be placed in a new class with a new teacher and new

~ classmates and Evan’s new school hours will be from 9:10am —

11:40am.

This transfer will take place on Wednesday of next week once I
submit the Withdrawal and Accounting paperwork on Monday.

This will sove the issue of Friday early dismissal pick ups.

The school has stressed that once this decision is made that there is
no turning back as MRs. Rengel’s class is the most popular
program in the school and that there is a waiting list for anxious
students to enter Mrs. Rengel’s Full Day Program when students
withdraw.

I am disappointed that I am forced to take these steps in order to
avoid conflict with my timeshare and timeshare pick ups and
disappointed that I am left with no choice, but to remove Evan
from Full Day Kindergarten because of lack of cooperation.

I am saddened with this course of action as Evan is thriving in Mrs.
Rengel’s Full Day Program, but his is necessary due to the
circumstances to avoid and keep Evan away from conflict.

On October 18, 2014 at 11:54 am, Sandra replies to the email stating Chris is not
authorized to make unilateral decisions and that “Evan will not be switching any classes, as he’s
in enough turmoil this month thinking he’s missing all his October activities with his

classmates.” Obviously Sandra is concerned about Evan’s welfare. And then Sandra correctly,

-10-
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points out, “Chris’ timeshare begins at 3 pm or the release of his school program on Fridays.”

On October 19, 2014, Chris responds that his timeshare begins when the school bell
rings. “When I cancel credit card payment tomorrow, Evan is automatically withdrawn from|
Full Day Kindergarten and moved to Half Day Kindergarten in which school bell rings at
11:40am.”

In Chris’ instant Motion, he would have this Court believe “...his communications are
polite and to the point.” However, when examining the attached Exhibits, Chris is anything but
polite and to the point. Further, it is obvious that Chris is not thinking of Evan’s best interests
because he refuses to follow professional recommendations, including those of Ms. Tilman’s and]
Ms. Pickard. Chris selfishly wanted to remove Evan from a program that he is excelling in with|
a desired teacher. In fact, attached hereto as Exhibit 3, is an email from Chris to Evan’s teacher
dated January 23, 2015 thanking Ms. Rengel for all she does as a teacher. Attached hereto as
Exhibit 4, is Evan’s report card for 2014-2015 school year indicating that he missed 20 days of

school out of 180, twice the amount allowed under Clark County School District Policy.

II.
LEGAL ANALYSIS
1. Sandra is the Primary Physical Custodial Parent.
Nevada Revised Statute 125.510(1) provides, in pertinent part, that:

In determining the custody of a minor child in an action brought
pursuant to this chapter, the court may, except as otherwise
provided in this section, NRS 125C.0601 to 125C.0693, inclusive,
and chapter 130 of NRS:

(a) During the pendency of the action, at the final hearing or at any
time thereafter during the minority of any of the children of the
marriage, make such an order for the custody, care, education,
maintenance and support of the minor children as appears in their

-11-
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best interest...”

“We conclude that the terms of the parties’ custody agreement will control except when

the parties move the court to modify the custody arrangement. In custody modification cases,
the court must use the terms and definitions provided under Nevada Law.”®

A parent has primary physical custody when he or she has physical
custody of the child subject to the district court’s power to award
the other parent visitation rights. See, e.g., Ellis, 123 Nev. At 147,
161 P.3d at 240. The focus of primary physical custody is the
child’s residence. The party with primary physical custody is the
party that has the primary responsibility for maintaining a home for
the child and providing for the child’s basic needs. . . . This focus
on residency is consistent with NRS 125C.010, which requires that
a court, when ordering visitation, specify the “habitual residence”
of the child. Thus, the determination of who has primary physical
custody revolves around where the child resides.’

In determining whether the parents have joint Physical custody, “The district court should
calculate the time during which a party has physical custody of a child over one calendar year,
Each parent must have physical custody of the child at least 40 percent of the time, which is 146
days per year.”lO

Although Chris would like this Court to believe he “. . . exercises a little more or a littlq
less than a 40% timeshare...” he is clearly misleading this Court. The simple truth of the matter
is that Evan resides with Sandra in Las Vegas, Nevada, and Chris exercises visitation.

Dr. Paglini states clearly that Sandra has historically been the primary custodian and

recommends specified visitation for Chris. Further, the Parenting Agreement provides that “Theg

parties shall share joint physical custody of the minor child, with the child to reside with the

7 Emphasis added. NRS 125.510(1).

8 Rivero v. Rivero, 125 Nev. 410, 429, 215 P.3d 213 226 (2009).
 Id. 125 Nev. at 427-428.

'8 Id. 125 Nev. at 427,

-12-
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Mother subject to the following timeshares by the Father:”'' Although the parties labeled their
agreement in this matter as joint physical custody, it was agreed that Sandra would be thg
primary residential parent and Chris would have visitation. Further, this Parenting Agreement
was made under the belief that Evan would always reside in Nevada and Chris would{

permanently relocate to the Las Vegas, Nevada area.'

a. Sandra is the Primary Custodian in 2015.

A close examination of Chris’ visitation for odd years, specifically 2015, Chris has
visitation with Evan for only 130 days, or just under 36 percent of the time. Attached hereto as
Exhibit 4 is a calendar with Chris’ visitation circled. Here is how it breaks down:

10 days total in January; 1-16 through 1-25. Chris was awarded his birthday (1-24) and
Martin Luther King Day (1-19), but those days fall on his regular timeshare.

0 days total in February; 2-20 through 2-28. Chris was awarded 10 days beginning on the
third Friday of the month, since February is a short month, Chris gets an extra day in March.

11 days total in March; 3-1 and 3-20 through 3-29.

10 days total in April; 4-17 through 4-26.

10 days total in May; 5-15 through 5-25. Chris was awarded Memorial Day (5-25) which|
is during his regular timeshare.

14 days total in June; 6-12 through 6-25.

14 days total in July; 7-10 through 7-23.

14 days total in August; 8-14 through 8-27.

11 days total in September; 9-18 through 9-27 and Evan’s birthday (9-30).

11 See Parenting Agreement P. 5 of 15 Paragraph 2.
12 See Parenting Agreement P. 5 of 15 Paragraph 2.1.

-13-

AA00545



Law Offices of Eric Roy
818 East Charleston Boulevard

W o ~1 O nh b L b e

T
AW N - O

702.423.3333

Las Vegas, Nevada 89104
() o o o o [\ [ ) o [— [— (- p— b
NN L B W N = D W 0 N O W

o
o0

10 days total in October; 10-16 through 10-25,

5 days total in November; 11-20 through 11-29. However, Sandra was awarded
Thanksgiving during this year and according to CCDC calendar, the holiday is 11-26 through 11-
27. The Parenting Agreement says Sandra gets from “the release of school before Thanksgiving]

*?

and shall continue until school resumes following the holiday...” So Sandra would have
Wednesday 11-25 through Monday 11-30.°
10 days total in December; 12-18 through 12-27.
Adding up every month of Chris’ regular visitation, his holiday visitation, and then
subtracting Sandra’s holiday visitation, Chris only has 130 days each and every odd numbered|
year. Accordingly, Sandra is the de facto primary physical / residential parent for 2015 and thus,

odd numbered years.

b. Sandra is the Primary Physical Custodian in 2014.

A close examination of Chris’ visitation for even years, specifically 2014, Chris had 4
total of 140 days, or 38 percent of the custodial timeshare. Attached hereto as Exhibit 5 shows
Chris’ visitation circled. Those times in which Sandra’s holiday schedule takes precedence over
Chris’ is marked with an X. Chris’ visitation breaks down as follows:

15 days total in January; 1-1 through 1-5 and 1-17 through 1-26.

11 days total in February; 1-15 through 1-17 ;md 1-21 through 1-28.

12 days total in March; 3-1 through 3-2 and 3-21 through 3-30.

10 days total in April; 4-18 through 4-27.

13 See Parenting Agreement P. 8 of 15 Paragraph 2.3 Holiday/Summer Timeshare: The parties agree to share
holiday and summer timeshare periods pursuant to the Nance/Ferraro Timeshare and Holiday Schedule Agreement
set forth on the attached schedule, Exhibit 1. The holiday schedule shall take precedence over the regularly
scheduled timeshare. Emphasis added.
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10 days total in May; 5-16 through 5-25.

14 days total in June; 6-13 through 6-26.

17 days total in July; 7-4 through 7-6 and 7-11 through 7-24.

14 days total in August; 8-8 through 8-21.

10 days total in September; 9-19 through 9-28.

11 days total in October; 10-17 through 10-26 and 10-31.

13 days total in November; 11-1 through 11-2, 11-11, and 11-21 through 11-30.

3 days in December; 12-29 through 12-31.

Accordingly, Sandra is the primary physical / residential custodian for 2014, and ;hus

even numbered years.

2. Chris has misstated the Legal Standard.

The type of physical custody arrangement is particularly important in
three situations. First, it determines the standard for modifying
physical custody. Second, it requires a specific procedure if a parent
wants to move out of state with the child. Potter v. Patter, 121 Nev.
613, 618, 119 P.3d 1246, 1249 (2005). Third, the type of physical
custody arrangement affects the child support award. Barbagallo,
105 Nev. at 549, 779 P.2d at 534.

In the present matter, Chris relies on Truax'*for the standard for modifying joint physical
custody. Although he cites the correct legal standard for modifying joint legal custody, his only
support that the parties have joint legal custody is that the Parenting Agreement labels it joing
physical custody and “Depending on how the holidays fall in a given year, Chris exercises a littl¢

more or a little less than 40% timeshare...”!> Granted, Rivero states that the timeshare should not

¥ Truax v. Truax, 110 Nev. 473, 874 P.2d 10 (1994).
'> See Chris’ Motion Page 21-22.
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be a simple calculation of hours, but it is clear from the foregoing that Sandra is in fact and law the

primary physical / residential parent.

a. Chris has not shown that Circumstances have Changed to Such an Extent
that a Modification is Appropriate.

The Nevada Supreme Court clarified the Murphy'®standard in Ellis v. Carucci:'’
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involved, etc.

While the Murphy test is too restrictive because it improperly focuses
on the circumstances of the parents and not the child, custodial
stability is still of significant concern when considering a child’s best
interest. The “changed circumstances” prong of the revised test
serves the important purpose of guaranteeing stability unless
circumstances have changed to such an extent that a modification is
appropriate. In determining whether the facts warrant a custody
modification, courts should not take the “changed circumstances”
prong lightly. Moreover, any change in circumstances must
generally have occurred since the last custody determination because
the “changed circumstances” prong “is based on the principle of res
judicata” and “prevents ‘persons dissatisfied with the custody
decrees [from filing] immediate, repetitive, serial motions until the
right circumstances or the right judge allows them to achieve a
different result, based on essentially the same facts”'®

Chris’ present Motion has not met the aforementioned standard. In fact, Chris Motion goes
into detail regarding Chris and his brother’s history in hockey, talks about extended family still in
New York, how horrible a mother Sandra is, that her children are from different fathers who are nof
Chris brings up no new information regarding a substantial change in Evan’s
circumstances that warrant a change in custody.

Although Chris acknowledges that Evan is excelling in school while in the primary custody,

of Sandra, he attempts to make an argument that he can financially provide better for Evan than

16 Murphy v. Murphy, 84 Nev. 710, 447 P.2d 664 (1968).
17 Ellis v. Carucci,, 123 Nev. 145, 161 P.3d 239 (2007).
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Sandra. However, this is a change of circumstances involving Chris, NOT Evan. Although Chris
has selfishly forced his way with Mr. Tolman, Ms. Pickard, and Sandra regarding holding Evan
back a grade, he has allowed Evan to miss an exorbitant amount of time in school and Evan is still
excelling. Evan’s report card attached hereto indicates Evan is doing fantastic in school and Sandra
is more than providing the stable residential environment wherein Evan thrives.
Chris even stoops to the level of saying that Sandra lives with her parent’s and is in a second
foreclosure. However, this is not an issue. Sandra and her three children, including Evan, are living
in a stable home surrounded by stable people who look after his interests. They have never been
without a bedroom to sleep in, they have never had the power, gas, or any other necessary services
disconnected, nor have they ever been without food to eat. Chris acknowledges himself that his
employment / minority business interest pays him in excess of $138,000 per year, which will
continue despite the company being in Chapter 11 Bankruptcy. If Chris would have been thinking
about Evan’s interests rather than his own, he would have updated his FDF and provided the
appropriate amount of child support for Evan.
Ms. Tolman recommends counseling for Evan one time per week for his anxiety, Sandra
makes sure Evan attends. Chris on the other hand protests that he doesn’t have to listen to her
recommendations. When Ms. Pickard makes recommendations to the parties regarding Evan,
Sandra complies if possible. However, if it is not what Chris wants, he throws his money into the
argument to alter the suggestions of what is best for Evan to get his own way. Typical narcissist ag
diagnosed by Dr. Paglini.
/1]
/11

vy
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b. Because Chris has not Shown Substantial Change in Circumstances, his
Relocation Argument is Premature.

Pursuant to Rivero, Chris is a non custodial parent exercising visitation less than 146 days or
40 percent of the time with Evan. As such, any relocation request would have to be accompanied
by a request to change his custodial status. Chris has not done so. He merely relies on this Court
believing he has more or less than 40 percent of the timeshare depending on how the holidays land.
According to Dr. Paglini, Chris “... tends to project himself in a consistently favorable light, and as
being relatively free of common shortcomings to which individuals admit.”"” Being a joint physical
custodian is another one of Chris’ delusions. Therefore, because Chris has failed to prove to this
Court that he is either a joint physical custodian or a primary physical custodian, and cannot meet
the first prong of Murphy later clarified by Ellis.

Even assuming that Chris was able to meet the first prong of the test, Chris fails to
demonstrate through competent evidence that Evan’s quality of life will be improved. Interestingly,
Chris argues pursuant to the first Schartz factor that “Chris’ quality of life [will improve] by
reducing some of the expense he incurs to spend his timeshares in Las Vegas...”

The second Schwarz factor must be questioned, because as this Court can clearly see, eveny
as recently as October of 2014, Chris was changing the rules at Evan’s expense to fit his desires. He
would rather have withdrawn Evan from a desired teacher with a waiting list to get into her
classroom, then have to wait a couple hours until Evan gets out of school. This is also after Chris,
against the professional advice of the parenting coordinator demanded that Evan stay back in school
so he could continue his visits in New York. Clearly, this Court should see through his narcissistic
self serving justifications and see that Chris is thinking only of himself, not Evan.

Chris has repeatedly shown by his actions that he is not capable of following any substitute

19 See Paglini’s Custody Evaluationp.12.
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orders pursuant to the third Schwarz factor as he does not listen to the recommendations of Ms,
Pickard, Ms. Tolman, or any other person who disagrees with Chris.

Sandra’s objection to Chris’ request to relocate is absolutely honorable as she has
historically been Evan’s primary / residential parent. Sandra has provided Evan a stable home
environment with his brother and sister. Evan just completed kindergarten and despite missing 20
days due to Chris’ traveling, is ready to proceed into the first grade. Sandra follows Ms. Tolman’s
advice regarding therapy for Evan’s anxiety, which Chris mocks and refuses to follow.

Interestingly, Chris cites to NRS 125.480 but neglects to mention the occasion that he was
witnessed by his neighbor yanking on Sandra’s hair, or committing an act of domestic battery. He
further neglects to mention the occasions when he put a brick through the front windshield of the
vehicle containing Sandra’s children, including Evan. His excuse was that he was attempting to
stop her from leaving and didn’t know the kids were in the car. The neighbor who witnessed the
incident noticed the kids in the car from the next door.

He mentions that it is Sandra’s fault for not co parenting. However, it took Chris two years
to finally complete the UNLV co parenting classes recommended by Dr. Paglini and Ordered by
this Court. Which he probably would never have done except for preparation of the instant Motion,
As for citing to his emails for being a co parent, this Court can clearly see that Chris acts like a child
throwing a tantrum when he does not get his way. Then, he uses his money, or threats to withhold
his money, to the detriment of Evan, in order to get his way.

Chris would also have this Court believe that neither parties’ mental or physical health is af
issue. Maybe Chris should go back and read Dr. Paglini’s Custody Evaluation wherein he is

0

diagnosed with “adjustment disorder, mixed anxiety and depressed mood...””° extremely

20 Id. citing Dr. Kinsora’s evaluation of Chris.
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defensive,”! narcissistically inclined, hypervigilant and likely obsessive-compuisive, with
exceptionally strong needs to be accepted by others.?

Chris completely overlooks Evan’s need for counseling. Evan has been diagnosed by Ms,
Tolman as having sever anxiety and requires counseling, which is also ‘recommended by Dr. Paglinjf
and Ms. Pickard. He has said in the attached exhibits, that Ms. Pickard or Ms. Tolman are not

going to tell him what is wrong with Evan nor does he have to follow their recommendations.”

3. Chris’ Motion should be Stricken as Defective.

Eighth Judicial District Court Rule 2.21 reads as follows:

(a) Factual contentions involved in any pretrial or post-trial
motion must be initially presented and heard upon_ affidavits,
unsworn declarations under penalty of perjury, depositions,
answers to interrogatories, and admissions on file. Oral testimony
will not be received at the hearing, except upon the stipulation
of parties and with the approval of the court, but the court may set
the matter for a hearing at a time in the future and require or allow
oral examination of the affiants/declarants to resolve factual issues
shown by the affidavits/declarations to be in dispute. . . .

(b) Each affidavit/declaration shall identify the affiant/declarant,
the party on whose behalf it is submitted, and the motion or
application to which it pertains and must be served and filed with
the motion, opposition, or reply to which it relates.

(c) Affidavits/declarations must contain only factual, evidentiary
matter, conform with the requirements of NRCP 56(e), and avoid
mere general conclusions or argument. Affidavits/declarations
substantially defective in these respects may be stricken, wholly or
in part.

/11
/1

21 1d. p. 11. “The client’s conscious efforts to influence the outcome of the evaluation and to project normally a
positive self image...”
2 Id.

23 See Attached Exhibit 2.
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Eighth Judicial District Court Rule 2.21, Emphasis added. EDCR 5.25(b) reads)
“Factual contentions involved in any family matter must be present to the judge or masten
as provided in Rule 2.21.” Emphasis added. Further, EDCR 5.26 states, “Affidavits in family
division motions must comply with Rule 2.21.” Emphasis added.

Chris’ instant Motion lacks an affidavit altogether and does not set forth any factual
allegations. As such, Chris’ Motion should be stricken as defective and he should be precludedi

from making any oral argument / testimony as Sandra does stipulate to allow him to do so.

4, Child Support should be set Pursuant to NRS 125B.070.

Nevada imposes upon both parents the duty to provide a child necessary maintenance,
health care, education, and support. Although the district court has discretion in setting child
support awards, it must act within the confines of the statutory scheme. In cases where one party
has primary physical custody and the other has visitation rights...the court applies the statutory
formulas and the noncust(;dial parent pays the custodial parent support.* Furthermore, if Sandrq
is confirmed as the primary physical custodian, this Court must award support pursuant to NR
125B.070(1)(b)(1), which dictates Chris must pay eighteen percent (18%) of his gross monthly
income.

According to Chris FDf filed with this Court on July 15, 2015, his gross monthly incom¢
is $11,538.46, of which eighteen percent is $2,076.92. However in July 2015, the Supreme
Court of Nevada issued the updated presumptive maximum amount of child support wherein

Chris falls into the category capped at $954 per month.

24 Rivero v. Rivero, 216 P.3d 213, 231 (Nev. 2009); citing, Barbagallo v. Barbagallo, 105 Nev. 546, 779 P.2d 532
(1989).
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5. Sandra should be Awarded Attorney Fees and Costs.
The Nevada Supreme Court stated factors that the District Court should consider in
determining whether to award attorney fees in Barney” follows:

(1) The advocate’s qualities, including ability, training,
education, experience, professional standing, and skill;

(2) The character of the work, including its difficulty,
intricacy, importance, as well as the time and skill required, the
responsibility imposed, and the prominence and character of the
parties when affecting the importance of the litigation;

(3)  The work performed, including the skill time, and attention
given to the work; and

(4)  The result-whether the attorney was successful and what
benefits were derived.

As this Court can see, Sandra has clearly met the above factors as her counsel has over 13|
years practicing family law litigation, has extensive training, and is a skilled advocate. The
current Opposition and Countermotion is necessary as Chris is attempting to wrongly convince
this Court he is a joint physical custodian, become primary physical custodian, and relocated
with Evan. According to his FDF, Chris spent at total of $44,818.16 at the time of filing his
FDF. This does not include the time spent post filing and for the hearing. As such, Sandra’s
counsel has been forced to spend a lot of time reading, preparing, researching, and writing the
instant Opposition and Countermotion.

An award of attorney fees is warranted when the opposing party’s actions are without
reasonable ground, or to harass the moving party. An award of attorney’s fees is within the
sound discretion of the Court?. In the instant matter, Chris has not met the correct legal standard
as set for above and has not brought any new evidence indicating a change of materiall
circumstances involving Evan. As such, Sandra should be awarded her reasonable attorney fees

and costs in an amount no less than $7,500.

25 Barney v. Mt. Rose Heating & Air Conditioning, 192 P.3d 730, 736 (2008), citing Brunzell v. Golden Gate
National Bank, 85 Nev. 345, 455 P.2d 31 (1969).
8 County of Clark v. Richard Blanchard Const. Co., 98 Nev. 48 (1982).
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CONCLUSION

Chris’s Motion should be denied in its entirety and Sandra should be awarded the relief|

she seeks in the foregoing Countermotion.

WHEREFORE, Sandra prays for relief as follows:
1. That this Court deny each and every request made by Chris in his instant Motion;

2. That this Court confirm Sandra as the Primary Physical Custodian of the parties’ minor

child;

3. That this Court modify child support to conform with NRS 125B.070(b)(1);
4. That this Court strike Chris’ Motion as defective;
5. That this Court grant Sandra her reasonable attorney fees and costs of at least $7,500; and

6. For such other relief as this Court may deem just and proper under the circumstances.

DATED this 7 day of July, 2015.

11/
/11

11/

IIL.

223.

Law Offices of Eric P. Roy

Robert ~"Weatherford, Esq.

Nevada Bar No.: 7949
818 E. Charleston Blvd.
Las Vegas, Nevada 89104
Tel. 2) 423-3333

Fax. (702) 924-2517

Attorney for Sandra Nance
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AFFIDAVIT OF SANDRA NANCE

STATE OF NEVADA )
) ss.
COUNTY OF CLARK )

I, SANDRA NANCE, being first duly sworn, deposes and says:

1. That I am the Plaintiff in the instant matter;

2. That I have read the above and foregoing Opposition and Countermotion and know the
contents thereof, that the same is true of my own knowledge, except those matters stated therein
on information and belief, and as to those matters I believe them to be true;

3. That I make this affidavit in good faith;

4. That Chris and [ have one minor child in common, Evan Daniel Ferraro, born
September 30, 2008;

5. That at all times herein I have attempted to listen to the advice and recommendations
of Ms. Pickard and Ms. Tolman,;

6. That Evan suffers from anxiety and therapy with Ms. Tolman helps;

7. That after visits in New York Evan’s anxiety increases;

8. That Chris has been resistant to follow Ms. Pickard and Ms. Tolman’s advice at the
expense of Evan’s wellbeing;

9. That I have historically been the primary physical custodian / residential parent of
Evan;

10. That I have more than 60% of time with Evan during even and odd years;

11. That Chris has not shown a change in circumstances regarding Evan,

12. That I provide a stable home and ensure he goes to school and counseling;

13. That Evan could be ahead one year in school except Chris demanded he stay back;

14, That Chris often threatens to withhold paying for things if he does not get his way;
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15, That Chris pay me $201.50 as and for monthiy child support;

2 16, That Cheis has failed to update his Financial Disclosure Form; and
3 17. That I have been forced to defend against Cheis® Motion and believe T am entitled {9

attorney fees and costs.
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I HEREBY CERTIFY, that on the _4th _ day of August, 2015, pursuant to Administrative Order
14.2, I e-served a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing Plaintiff’s Opposition to Defendant’s
Motion to Modify Custody, for Relocation of Minor Child, and Other Related Relief and Countermotion
for Confirmation of Primary Physical Custodian; Modification of Child Support; Strike Chris’ Motion as

Defective; and Reasonable Attorney Fees and Costs, to the following individuals addressed as follows:

Shannon R. Wilson, Esq.
Hutchison & Steffen, LLC
Swilson@Hutchlegal.com

//s// Katrina Schaab
An employee of Eric Roy, Esq.
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DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

SANDRA L. NANCE Case No. D-10-426817-D
Plaintiff/Petitioner
v Dept. K
CHRISTOPHER M. FERRARO MOTION/OPPOSITION
Defendant/Respondent FEE INFORMATION SHEET

Notice: Motions and Oppositions filed after entry of a final order issued pursuant to NRS 125, 125B or 125C are
subject to the reopen filing fee of $25, unless specifically excluded by NRS 19.0312. Additionally, Motions and
Oppositions filed in cases initiated by joint petition may be subject to an additional filing fee of $129 or §57 in

accordance with Senate Bill 388 of the 2015 Legislative Session.

Step 1. Select either the $25 or $0 filing fee in the box below.

$25 The Motion/Opposition being filed with this form is subject to the $25 reopen fee.
-OR-
O $0 The Motion/Opposition being filed with this form is not subject to the $25 reopen
fee because:

[ The Motion/Opposition is being filed before a Divorce/Custody Decree has been
entered.

O The Motion/Opposition is being filed solely to adjust the amount of child support
established in a final order.

O The Motion/Opposition is for reconsideration or for a new trial, and is being filed
within 10 days after a final judgment or decree was entered. The final order was
entered on :

O Other Excluded Motion (must specify)

Step 2. Select the $0, $129 or $57 filing fee in the box below.

$0 The Motion/Opposition being filed with this form is not subject to the $129 or the
$57 fee because:
The Motion/Opposition is being filed in a case that was not initiated by joint petition.

O The party filing the Motion/Opposition previously paid a fee of $129 or $57.
-OR-
0 $129 The Motion being filed with this form is subject to the $129 fee because it is a motion
to modify, adjust or enforce a final order.
-OR-
O $57 The Motion/Opposition being filing with this form is subject to the $57 fee because it is
an opposition to a motion to modify, adjust or enforce a final order, or it is a motion

and the opposing party has already paid a fee of $129.

Step 3. Add the filing fees from Step 1 and Step 2.

The total filing fee for the motion/opposition I am filing with this form is:
0$0 [@$25 [00$57 (082 [1$129 [1$154

Party filing Motion/Opposition: SANDRA L. NANCE, Plaintiff Date 8/4/15

Signature of Party or Preparer //s/] Katrina Schaab
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This.is a reasonabis solution as it accommaodates his learning environment and does not hold him back.
Many children who are academically ready but not emotionally prepared for kindegarten do this.

On Tue, M

veofararniS3@eol com> wrote!
Margaret, |

t do not agres with this proposal. This makes no sense o me. This i an attempt to force Sandra and tio
agree on somathing 1 don't feel comiortable.

Lets not complicate this and come up with alternatives {o force Evan indo a siluationthat can be
detrimental to his fulure and fo make Sandra happy.

{ do naot agree with this suggestion.

Chris

Sent from my iPhone

F<margarsipickardi@aol.com> wrole:

Headlo AllL

{ have not received a response from The Learning Adventure or HOPE, but if | don't hear from tham soon,

AA00561



i is my understanding per parenting plan that holidays close to timeshare were worked into & around
timeshare days, and notin addition to?

Chris is proposing a 16 day timeshare for the month off August due to labor day being his year. { was not
aware that is how the timeshare lnoked.

Please get back to us on this matter,

Thank you,

Sandra
Sand huan oy PeRdokale G UTE Bavine
~eeee (rfginal message

evadamadialor@umal.oom>
ate: QEINEDIR & M {GMT-08:00)

To: Chris Ferraro <gferrarg1513@a0l.com>

Co lsovagasiorevarti@aol com

Subject: Re: Any Word?

Chris,

CCSD for the 2013-2014 school year. However, she is willing to agree that Evan will continue at the
Learning Adventure for the upcoming schoot year, in the pre-kindergarten program if, prior 1o the summer
of 2014, vou will agree that Bvan can be tested {hrough an appropriate third parly, io determing if ha s
amotionally, cognitively and academically prepared to enter 1si grade. iIn the evant the testing ageney
determines that he is, you will both agree that Evan will enter CO8D a3 a ist grader at that time.

Please let me know if you are in agreement with the-above.

it addition, she and | discussed the following:

1. Exchanges: Exchanges remain emotional and this is inappropriate. You are the adull and you
gannet become distraught at the exchanges, as this is negative for Evan. I addition, whather Desmaond,
Sandra’s mather, or any other reasonable caretaker arrives at the pickup location, you must transfer Evan
to them, just as Sandra dogs with your sister or your agent, You are not permitted to personaily put Evan
in-a third party's car. These issues have been addressed so many times and | am surprised that this is.
continuing.

parant, you waive this call and Sandra is under no obligation to agree to any time modifications. Whan
Sandra is the non-residential parent, the same rule applies. Howevear, i the residential parent misses a
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call, that parent must make up the missed call at a mutually agreeable time: Calls are to. be lfimited to 1/2
nour and can be terminated by the residantial parent theraafler; however, the non-residential parent
should be responsible encugh o respect this time frame and terminate the call ine 1/2 how.

[ will contact HOPE to determing how Evan is doing with the exiended visits and if any madifications nesd
1o be made.

Please review the above,

On Wed 13@a0lcom™> wrote:

Chris

Serd from sy iPhone

On Jul 10,2013, at 2:10 PM, Margarst Pickard <nevadamedisior@omailoom> wrote:

Chyis,
P ses no reason why you cannol schedule yvour flights and proceed with the plans.
Sandra,

| have not received a return aall from you and | left ancther message tnday: [ am available throughout the
day today to discuss this issue and get a resolution,

If no resolution Is reached today, Chris can procesd with his travel arrangsments,

From: <gferraro1 81 3@ant com»

Date: Tus, Jul 8, 2013 at 8:35 PM
Subjeet Any Word?

Margaret,

Any word from Sandra? | need to make plans for my August Timeshare and Evan's schooling for next
year.
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This is taking 1o long. Please get har moving on this. The longer she wails the more sxpensive flights
are,

| also nesd o gat my finances in place o pay school tuilion for next year,
GEL MY 8N4 ¥

Tharnk you,
Chrig

Re: Any Word?

e b e e B o e "5\"";‘?“7" it
U OO D INOVERITITHIOQ T

Marga re*'

Schooling:

Y ou mantion that Sandm condit Onaily agraea o not ﬁr‘mi‘ Evan inm kiﬁdergaﬁen next year Sandra has

dab This defeals ihe purpasre of BEvan waiting this | -
kanderqanen as he will be the youngest in his class and the potential problems that may ooour. After
doing extensive rasearch and due diligence on this matter | will remain firm on this.

Sandra's Options: Starting Monday Septamber 2, 2013

1. The Challenger School - Pre K Program

&, MerryHill School - Pre K Program

fwill take the approach starting Monday Seplember 8, 2013 that when Evan is in New York for his
timeshare with dad, | wilt enroll him info a top Pre K Program in New York and |will be financially

resporsible of Evan's Schooling ONLY in New York.

While Evan is da’i'm} his tim-eshare '”'n- Las \»"cha‘ts w’i-ih hé's mf.}ther ShE’: wii% nroll hmina Pre K ngram

Sandra's suggestion to send Evan to a Christian Private Schoal will not agree to. will not participate in
forcing a certain Religion onto a 4 year old at this early stage of hiz life. | have looked into their
curriculum and it is below average at best.

AA00564



| have made my attempts for the past 2 years to find the top schools in Las Vegas for Evan's best interest
and development and Sandra has not and does not support this. In the end the only one she is impacting

and hurting is Evan.

Chris
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Report Card 2014-2015 Page 1 of 1
CCSD§
CLARK COUNTY
SCHOOL DISTRICT _ )
. Student Information School information . Lo
Student Name  Ferraro, Evan D T School Givens, Linda Rankin ES
Student ID 12009862 Principal  Danlel R Hungerford
Track 14-15 Givens ES '|Phone (702)799-1430
Grade K , Address 655 Park Vista Dr Las Vegas, NV 89138
Teacher REHBEIN-RENGEL, DAWN CHRISTINE Website '
Grade Scale’ Special Subjects and Leamer Grade Scale | Attendance Summary  [Semester 1|Semaster 2 Total
A 90-100% Behaviors Grade Scale 4 Exceeds | Days Enrolled 89 81 180
B 80-89% Excepfional Progress  E 3 Meets ""‘D“ayg Absent 7 13 ; 20
C 70-79% Satisfactory Progress S 2 Approaches ["Days Tardy 3 0 5
D 60-69% Needs Improvement N 1 Emergent [Early Ot ) 0 0
F 0-59% - T
| CONTENT AREAS 'SEMESTER: | SEMESTER SUCCESSFUL LEARNER BEHAV!ORS Lol
: 1 ' 2 ‘Observes School Rules Gl
Language B ollows Classroom Rules. S
| Cverall Grade | 2 3 Follows Direcllons S
Mathematics - ' ‘[Accepts Rasponsibility S
Overall Grade 3 ] Works Indspendenliy S i
Counting and CardinaRty K] Works Cooparatively 5 T
Operaifons and Algebralc THinking 3 ] Completes and Relurns Homewark on E
.Numbers and Operations In Base Ten 3 , Tlma ‘ :
_Measurement and Data 3 uailly o1 Work I :
- Geomelry ‘ 3 S SEMESTER 1 COMMENTS | il
‘|Raading ' .cvan is pragressing nicely in kindergarten. Gontinued pr d praclice of ra?]ng;
Overall Grade 3 3 daity and having him retell the story in arder, including impertant detais,
Reading Llierafure ‘ 3 culd be beneficlal. In math, he meels ali grade level standards, Evanis |
‘Reading Informational Text 3 workiing-on correct spacing, punctuatian. capitalization, sireiching out
[ ‘Reading Foundatlonal SKIHS 3 -words while wriling what he hears, .and adding detalls as well as a closing
Science/Health 1o his storles, He would profit (rum writing at home.on a daily besis about
Overall Grade K] 3 * topics thal are interasting to him so he can werk furthar an thasa skilfs.
MNature of Sclence 3 fAlso, ha would benefil from addiflonal- pracllca In writing the following |
‘Physical Sclence 3 allérs of lhe slphahet comactly: b,'d, k, M, m.N, P,p, R, u, Y, and y. Whtle1
Earih and Space Scienco ) writing and colosing, he would prol‘il from faking hts tima.and
Life Science 3 mrinting/celoring: naally Evan Is-a cheerful student who rasponds readily {o
Health | 3 ﬂraise : ; :
Sotial Studlés _ , - © SEMESTER 2 CDMMENTS A
Overall Grade T 3 3 Evan is a 5weel hoy and | am happy 1o have had himTn my. c!assroom Hisg'
'Speaking and Listening ' acadenilc growth has been exciling to see over the pas! year and 1 am'so-
1Overall Grade i 3 3 proutd of himl Continued reading and retelling storles throughout the
Writing : summsr would help strengthen Evan's skills. Evan would also benefit from
Overall Grade I 2 k! uiTiting a stery at laast three tmas per week to malntain his writing skills,
- Ha will be a welcoma addition {o any 1st grade classroom. .
SPECIAL SUBJECTS [/
Art - '
Overall Grade -} E E . -
gg:::;‘g;‘:e — : e Teacher Signa _ : Principal Signature - .
Humanitles ' Nt
Overall Grade T E E
Library , . . .
Ovaral Grade T E E This student will be assigned to grade 1 nexi school year.
| Music
Overall Grade ] S S NOTE: Strand level grades (je. Reading Literature, Reading
FE__ Informational Text) are dynamic and always changing, therefore
Uverall Grade | S S only the most current strand grade will appear on the report card.

Generated on 06/04/2015 09:53:43 AM

DEFT0286
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713012015

Year 2014 Calendar — United States

Calendar for year 2014 (United States)

January February March
SuMo T $ Th E % Su Mo TuWe Th Fr Sa||Su Mo Tu We Th Fré&)t
(::ZZ{? 1
@67911234567 >3 4 5 6 7 8
2&35516 9. 10.11 12 1314 45h|9 10 11 12 13 14 15
& (A7 )18 12 20 16 17 18 19 20@
go)21 28 2 & BEH G O & @@@@@
31
1:@7:0©15:024.030:@ 6:0 14:0 22:0 1: @80 16:023:030:@
April May June
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa||Su Mo TuWe Th Fr Sa||Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa
2345 12-3123456
678910 456781089
41555 11112131415
2022 2D g@@ﬁ@ 2728
$7) 28 29 30 165 26 27 28 29 30 31 29 30
7.0 150 22:0 20:@® 6:014:021:025:@ 5:013:019:027.@
July August September
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Su Mo Tu We Tt\ Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa
12 3 /4) 1 2 3 4 5 6
7 8 9 1000 7891011 13
g B g 14 15 1 17 18
25 26 22 23| €D
28 29 30 31 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 @ 29
5:0 12:0 18:0 26:@ 3.0 10:017:025:@ 20380150240
October November December
SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa||Su Mo TuWe Th Fr Sa| |Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa
1 2 3 4 ) . @S 1 2 3 4 5 6
567891 @3 5 6 7 8|7 8 9 10 11 12 13
13 14 1 g 9 10@12 13 14 15 14 15 16 17 18}(
16 17 19 2 A g
27 8 29 30 2H & 5 S
10380 15:023:@30:0| [ 6:014:022.@0290.0 || 5014021020

Jan 1

Holidays and Observances:

New Year's Day

May 11 Mother's Day

Qct 31 Halloween

Jan 20 Martin Luther King Day

Feb 14 Valentine's Day

Feb 17 Presidents' Day

Apr 13 Thomas Jefferson's Birthday
Apr 20 Easter Sunday

May 26 Memornial Day

Jun 15 Father's Day

Jul4 Independence Day

Sep 1 Labor Day

Oct 13 Columbus Day (Most regions)

Nov 11 Veterans Day
Nov 27 Thanksglving Day
Dec 24 Christmas Eve
Dec 25 Christmas Day
Dec 31 New Year's Eve

Calendar generated on www.timeanddate.com/calendar

http:/Awww timeanddate.com/calendarfprint.tmi?year=2014&country= 1&cols=38df= 1
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AA00579



EXHIBIT 6

0000000



713012015 Year 2015 Calendar — United States

Calendar for year 2015 (United States)

January February March

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo TuWe Th Fr Sa| |{Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa
123 456 7|23 4567

1
4567891 8 9 10 11 12 8 9 10 11 1213 1
1 ﬁ@ 17&19%111718%
i} eleletel et zalotaa
0 31 30 31
4:013:020.@26:0 3:011:013:@025:0 || 5:013:020.:@27:0

April May June
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa|{Su Mo TuWe Th Fr Sa| [Su Mo TuWe Th Fr Sa
1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 101
12 1 é é 16 G748
£D(25)
27 28 29 30 28 29 30
1
4011:015:@25.0 3:011:015:@25:0 209:016:@24.0
July August September
Su Mo TuWe Th Fr Sal|SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa||Su Mo TuWe Th Fr Sa
1 2 1 2 3 4 5

6 9 6§ 7 8 9 1011 12

13 14 15 18 1 F
5O6848%

1:08015:@24:031:0]| 6:014:@22:020:0 || 5:013:@21:027.0

—
h

2 2728 29 031

October November December
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa||{Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa| |Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa
1 2 3 1 2 3 4 56 7 1 2 3 4 5

26 27 28 29 30 3N 28 29 30 31

4567 8 18910111211 6 7 8 9 10111
11 121 15 ] 18,19 13.14 15 16 1 (
g @5» @‘.-. >

4012.020:027.0 || 30 11:010:025:0 || 3:011.018:0250
Holidays and Observances:
Jan 1 New Year's Day Jul4 Independence Day
Jan 19 Martin Luther King Day Sep 7 Labor Day
[Feb 14 Valentine's Day Oct 12 Columbus Day (Most regions)
Feb 16 Presidents’ Day Oct 31 Halloween
AprS Easter Sunday Nov 11 Veterans Day
Apr 13 Thomas Jefferson's Bithday | Nov 26 Thanksgiving Day
May 10 Mother's Day Dec 24 Christmas Eve
May 25 Memorial Day Dec 25 Christmas Day
Jun 21 Father's Day Dec 26 Day After Christmas Day
Jul3 ‘Independence Day' observed | Dec 31 New Year's Eve

Calendar generated on www.timeanddate.com/calendar

hitp:/Mmww timeanddate.com/calendar/print.iiml ?year=2015&country= 18&cols=3&df= 1 "
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Electronically Filed

08/11/2015 03:54:40 PM

1 RPLY % i*g“"‘"‘"

Shannon R. Wilson (9933)

Todd L. Moody (5430)
HUTCHISON & STEFFEN, LLC
Peccole Professional Park

10080 West Alta Drive, Suite 200
Las Vegas, NV 89145

Tel:  (702) 385-2500

CLERK OF THE COURT

S L N

5| Fax: (702) 385-2086
swilson@hutchlegal.com
6
Attorneys for Defendant Christopher Michael Ferraro

7

8 DISTRICT COURT- FAMILY DIVISION

9 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
= 10 SANDRA LYNN NANCE ) CASE NO. D-10-426817-D
- 11 ) DEPTNO.F
. Plaintiff(s), )
sa o 12 )
1o o V. %

“3 L 2% 13 CHRISTOPHER MICHAEL FERRARO )
 oF EEEE | )
- o hgz 14 Defendant(s). ) Date of Hearing: August 12, 2015
o w 0% 15 ) Time of Hearing: 10:00 a.m.
ale g )  Oral Argument Requested: Yes
=B F 316
LQ

O ° 17 DEFENDANT CHRISTOPHER FERRARO’S REPLY IN SUPPORT
E—~ OF MOTION TO MODIFY CUSTODY, FOR RELOCATION OF MINOR CHILD,
- 18 AND OTHER RELATED RELIEF
= 19 Defendant Christopher Ferraro, by and through his attorneys of record, Todd L. Moody

20 || and Shannon R. Wilson of Hutchison & Steffen, LL.C, submits his reply in support of his

71 || motion to modify custody, for relocation of minor child, and other related relief. Defendant
72 || apologizes for the late filing; however, he only received Plaintiff Sandra Lym Nance’s

73 || opposition on August 5, 2015, even though it was due by July 13, 2015. Sandra’s counsel

74 || never requested an extension. In an abundance of professional courtesy, on Jule 23, 2015,

25 || Chris’s attorney reached out to Sandra’s counsel to request that he file the opposition not 1ater}
76 || than July 29, 2015. However, Sandra’s opposition was not filed until August 4, 2015, and not

27 Il received until August 5, 2015, the day on which Chris’s reply was due.

28 || //

Docket 72454 Document 2017-09067
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1 This case concerns Evan Ferraro, the parties son, who will turn seven on September 30,
2015 and will start the first grade at the end of August. Chris seeks to modify custody for the

purpose of allowing Evan’s relocation to New York. The main thing that Chris asks the Court

S L b

to consider in his reply is that since his motion was prepared, he received from the Evan’s
counselor a Clinical Summary for a Comprehensive Child Assessment (hereinafter,
“Assessment”). The Assessment states that Evan suffers from: (1) generalized anxiety disorder;
(2) oppositional defiant disorder; and (3) ADHD/combined presentation. The assessment

describes behaviors and traits allegedly exhibited by Evan that support the counselor’s

o 00 1 Gy Ln

diagnosis; however, these behaviors are notably absent when Evan is with Chris and, perhaps

7. _ 10 || more importantly, do not appear to have been observed by his kindergarten teacher or principal
E 11 || during the entire last school year. (See Ex. E to Deft. Mot. filed Jun. 19, 2015 at DEFT 78-79,
E g 12|/ 94-95, 113 (emails from C. Rengel and D. Hungerford); see also id. at Ex. K at DEFT 285
CE;ﬁ % % % o 13 || (Evan’s mid-year report card); see also Ex. L Evan’s year-end report card, attached hereto.)
§ % ég 14 || Notably absent from the school’s correspondences and report cards are notes or comments one
g g % ?_ gﬂ’ 15 || would typically see of a child with the diagnoses given to Evan. (/d.)
E E g é 3 16 It is disconcerting to Chris, that if Evan is indeed exhibiting these behaviors, the only
: = 17 || place he appears to exhibit them is in his mother’s household, and he does not believe that Evan
; 18 || should have to spend his childhood in therapy when no problems present themselves outside of

19 || his mother’s household. Therefore, Chris requests the Court grant him temporary primary

20 || physical custody and allow Evan to temporarily relocate to New York to begin first grade there
21 || while this action is pending a final decision. That Evan’s temporary relocation is in his best

22 | interest is further supported by the fact that Chris spends his days with children — his very job is
23 || to coach children of all ages. Consequently, Chris is uniquely qualified and positioned to

24 || parent Evan and be with him both before and after school and foster Evan’s participation in a

25 || variety of activities.

26 | //
271/
28 || //
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1 This Reply is made and based on, infer alia, NRS Chapters 125 and 125C, the
following memorandum of points and authorities, the pleadings and papers on file herein and

any oral argument the Court may allow.

F L2 N

g
DATED this _j}{ “?M’day of August, 2015.
HUTCHISON & STEFFEN, LLC

. , '

F N

Shannon R. Wildon (9933)

Todd E. Moody (5430)

Peccole Professional Park

10080 West Alta Drive, Suite 200
Las Vegas, NV 89145

Tel:  (702) 385-2500

O 0 1 O LA

d 10 Fax: (702) 385-2086
(L] swilson@hutchlegal.com
[L, 11
[ Attorneys for Defendant Christopher Michael Ferraro
[ o 12 o | A
NE §§ POINTS & AUTHORITIES
ORI § £ 0 13
E < Z.0 1. FACTS
oz 14
Zila ks ; , Sandra appears determined to recycle old, inflammatory and unsubstantiated allegations.
Ol e=zg 15
75 % 4 g % If she wants to go down this path, then Chris could talk about the multiple times that Sandra
K 16
5 & 8 punched him in his face or the time that she poured bleach on his clothes, but Chris does not
- 17
55 believe that those type of allegations and the many similar allegation that Sandra has recycled
18
. against him are relevant to the present action whereas these things she alleges, to the extent that
19
they occurred at all, occurred not just prior to the last order, but prior to the parties filing their
20
original custody actions in New York and Nevada in 2010.
21
Sandra’s opposition also dredged up Dr. Paglini’s criticisms of Chris dating back over
22
three years to March 2012, without acknowledging that Dr. Paglini has criticisms of Sandra too.
23
For example, Dr. Paglini said of Sandra:
24
The issues of concern are listed because they are potential risk
25 factors regarding Evan. To illustrate, Ms. Nance did have three
children by three different men. Hence, Ms. Nance’s relationship
26 instability is considered a risk factor for Evan. . . . She had an
assault charge in a nightclub that was dismissed. This evaluator
27 spoke with Mr. Philiposian who reported the altercation did occur
and they both share responsibility for that incident. . . . Another
28 issue of concern is 1in regards to Ms. Nance’s occasional anger.
-3
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1 (On file herein, Report by Dr. Paglini dated March 26, 2012 at p. 52.) Dr. Paglini went on to
? note that,”“She has no skills and wants to provide for her family.” (Id. at p. 53.) Notably, Dr.
’ Paglini also indicated that Sandra exhibited “issues of mild narcissism.” (/d.) So, why is
* Sandra continually criticizing Chris for a diagnosis that, according to Dr. Paglini, she shares?
’ That said, as explained in Chris’s underlying motion, he submitted himself to an evaluation
° with a board certified psychiatrist and a psychologist, experienced in child custody matters, who
! did not detect any narcissism in Chris.
i Sandra goes on to discuss Dr. Paglini’s recommendations, but his recommendations
_ ’ were rendered moot by the parties’ own stipulated parenting plan, reached a few months later in
5 0 November 2012, which is the agreement they have been exercising ever since. Here we finally
E:: ! come to a relevant issue: what is the custodial arrangement pursuant to the parenting plan?
g Q% é 2 The parenting plan states that they share jbint legal and joint physical cﬁstoay. 7Chris’s motion
C/) % % i% i} and Sandra’s opposition each attempted to identify Chris’s percentage timeshare over the last
Z |9 g g ; few years, and there is clearly a factual dispute as to the actual dates of visitation. Sandra
cz % % ié* % 12 argues that in odd years Chris has a 36% timeshare and in even years he has a 38% timeshare.
5 . g 7 Chris’s tables of the actual visitation he exercised show timeshares in the last three years
; o ranging from 38% to 42%. The question for the Court is, what to do with this in light of
- Bluestein, this issue is the legal argument section below, but also, if Sandra is the de facto
P primary physical custodian, how does that help her case in so far as she contends that Evan
2 exhibits the symptoms that give rise to Ms. Tolman’s diagnoses of Evan while in her care.
2 Really, 1t suggests that it is time for Chris to step in as Evan’s primary custodian.
. In addition to the timeshare issue, Chris ﬁrges the more relevant allegations in Sandra’s
> motion pertain to Evan’s schooling, co-parenting issues generally, and Evan’s mental health
* and emotional development. With respect to the school allegations, Evan’s birthday is the
» cutoff date for kindergarten enrollment. Chris clearly recalls conversations with Margaret
26 Pickard and Judith Tollman in which they said, to the effect, that if they had a son whose
Z birthday was that close to the cut-off date, then they would wait until the next year to enroll
-4 -
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1 I him. Chris’s reason for delaying Evan’s enrollment in Kindergarten was not to maintain his

2 || New York timeshare, it was based on his research and Evan’s development at that time. With
3 || respect to the allegation that Chris did not complete the co-parenting seminar until February of
4 || this year; he had in fact completed more than 75 or 80% of the prografn, and when he and

5 || Sandra were in a period of equanimity, it fell by the wayside. When he realized that he had not
6 || completed it, he contacted the course administrator and completed it.

7 Chris is amazed that Sandra thinks his family still talks about her. She alleges, “Evan’s
8 || anxious condition is believed to be not just a product of constant travel between New York and
9 || Nevada; but also the stress this young child undergoes being constantly exposed to Chris’

10 || family’s hostility toward Sandra.” Evan is an experienced traveler, it 1s second nature to him,
11 || and does not create any anxiety. Nor 1s Evan exposed to any hostility toward Sandra. Chris’s

12 || family does not even talk about Sandra.- He 1s also mystified by her allegation that his family’s

STEFFEN

13 || participation in Evan’s events is somehow contrary to Evan’s best interest. The Ferraro’s are a

14 || close-knit family, and that is not a bad thing.

15 The anxiety and other behaviors that Sandra alleges Evan exhibits are not something
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16 || that Chris or his family observe in Evan. Years ago, the parties were ordered to have Evan in
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17 || counseling. When the parties were getting along, Sandra took Evan out of counseling, and

18 || when they became at loggerheads again, Sandra unilaterally re-enrolled Evan in counseling and

<.
O
2
T
&
=
-
T

19 || he has remained in counseling for almost a year now, over Chris’s objections.

20 Chris does not object because he thinks he knows better than the counselor; Chris

21 | objects because nothing that he observes, nor apparently Evan’s school observes, suggests that
22 || counseling is necessary. He does not believe that a child should spend his life in counseling.
23 || He should be playing with his friends and family and dogs, running around, skating at the

24 || hockey rink, playing baseball and soccer, swimming, learning an instrument, etc. These are

25 || things that Chris believes Evan needs, which Sandra does not provide. Even if Evan does need
26 || therapy, and Chris is happy to continue Evan in therapy if the Court allows him to relocate to
27 || New York to help Evan adjust with the transition, Chris also believes that Evan needs all of

28 || those other things every bit as much.
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1| 2. LEGAL ARGUMENT

b2

A. Temporary relocation to New York,

NRS 125.510 provides in relevant part:

Ju WO

1. In determining the custody of a minor child in an action brought
pursuant to this chapter, the court may, except as otherwise provided
in this section, NRS 125C.0601 to 125C.0693, inclusive, and
chapter 130 of NRS:

(a) During the pendency of the action, at the final hearing or at any
time thereafter during the minority of any of the children of the
marriage, make such an order for the custody, care, education,
maintenance and support of the minor children as appears in their
best interest|. ]

o =1 v La

NRS 125.510(1)(a). Sandra argues that she is Evan’s primary physical custodian, yet she states that

7 10 || inher care Evan exhibits anxiety and behavioral problems, which require her to keep him in weekly
E 11 || or bi-weekly therapy. These behaviors are remarkably absent when Evan is at school and when
E g 12 || Evanisin Chris’s care, which strong suggests that the problem lies in Sandra’s home. Chris has
v % % % o 13 made a prima facie case that a change of custody is warranted. Evan is starting the first grade in
- § % ?é § 14 || afew weeks. What was most remarkable about Sandra’s motion was its omission of what she and
O g % g § 15 || Nevada have to offer Evan over the voluminous opportunities that life in New York presents for
E iLz g § 3 16 {| him. This 1s an opportune time for relocation, whether it 1s temporary or permanent, and all of the
i
Ej s 17 || facts and circumstances lean strongly in favor of Evan’s relocation to New York, provided that
é 18 || reasonable alternative visitation can be afforded to Sandra, and it can as set forth in Chris’s

19 || proposed visitation schedule, attached to his underlying motion.

20 || B.  Legal Standard for Modification and Relocation

21 Sandra alleges that Chris has misstated the applicable legal standard. Her allegation 1s
22 || based on the idea that even though their parenting plan states they have joint physical custody, she
23 || asserts that he exercises less than a 40% timeshare. In Bluestein v. Bluestein, _ the Nevada
24 || Supreme Court said, “Rivero's 40-percent guideline should not be so rigidly applied that it would
25 || preclude joint physical custody Wﬁen the court has determined in the exercise of its broad
26 || discretion that such a custodial designation is in the child's best interest.” Indeed, as Sandra
27 || acknowledged in opposition, this Court awarded the parties joint legal and joint physical custody

28 || on November 21, 2011. Therefore, a determination was previously made that joint physical

-6 -
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1 || custedy was in Evan’s best interest. The parties subsequéntly affirmed this by their agreement and
2 || Chris has maintain at or near a 40% timeshare despite living and work in New York.
3 Therefore, Chris believes that the legal standards articulated in his motion are correct, but
4 || even if the Court applied Murphy v. Murphy, 84 Nev. 710, 447 P.2d 664 (1968) and Fllis v.
5 || Carucci, 123 Nev. 145,161 P.3d 239 (2007), the same result would obtain. The substantial change
6 || in circumstances includes, but is not necessarily limited to: (a) Sandra alleges Evan experiences
7 || anxiety and behavioral issues in her home, whereas these things are not observed in Chris’s home
8 || orapparently at school; (b) Evan is of an age where extracurricular activities and socializétion with
9 || his peers is important and Sandra does not foster this; (¢) Evan’s is entering first grade and the
1 10 || schools in New York are better than Las Vegas; (d) Evan mentioned to Chris that Sandra may be
E 11 || moving soon; and (d) albeit of lesser importance than things effecting the circumstances of the
E;i g 12| child, Chris’s circumstances have changed in that since the parenting plan was entered, the business
; % E % o 13 |i opportunities presented to him ended up being in New York, and that is where he has built his
§ % ég 14 } second career.
g E % ? é 154 C.  Child Support
E § g é 3 16 Chris does not disagree that child support is subject to review pursuant to NRS 125B.145;
2 = 17 || however, if Evan is to stay in Las Vegas to begin first grade, then Chris intends to find a way to
2 18 I continue to exercise his current timeshare, in Las Vegas. Asitis, Chris already spends the majority
- 19 || of his income to make his visitations with Evan possible. As set forth in his financial disclosure
20 || form he spends an average of $6,500 per month to make joint physical custody possible.
21 Of course, if Chris is granted temporary primary physical custody of Evan, then Sandra will
22 || pay child support to Chris, and Chris will pay the costs of transportation for her visitation with
23 || Evan.
24 | D.  Attorney’s Fees and Costs
25 Sandra’s request for attorney’s fees and costs should be denied for several reasons,
26 including, infer alia, Chris brought this motion because it is strongly in Evan’s best interest to
27 |l relocate to New York, and while Chris understands that Sandra loves Evan and wants to be his
28 || primary custodian as much as Chris does, it is Evan’s best interest that is paramount.
-7 -
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| 3. CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing, Chris respectfully requests that the Court: (1) grant him
temporary primary physical custody and allow Evan’s relocation to New York, pending a final
determination of the matter; (2) set the matter for evidentiary hearing on the issue of granting
Chris permanent primary physical custody and allowing Evan’s relocation to New York; (3) set
child support consistent with custody arrangement, and if Evan remains in Las Vegas, provide
Chris an appropriate offset for the costs he incurs to exercise his visitation; and (4) deny Sandra
an award of attorney’s fees and costs.

DATED this ﬁ day of August, 2015.

HUTCHISON & STEFFEN, LLC

7 7).
BY: Mg & 5
Shaninén R/Wilson {9933)
Todd‘L. Moody (5430)

Peccole Professional Park

10080 West Alta Drive, Suite 200
Las Vegas, NV 89145

Tel:  (702) 385-2500

Fax: (702) 385-2086
swilson(@hutchlegal.com

- Attorneys for Defendant Christopher Michael Ferraro
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1 CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

2 Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I certify that I am an employee of HUTCHISON & STEFFEN,

3 || LLC and that on this | {*~day of August, 2015, T caused the above and foregoing document

4 || entitled DEFENDANT CHRISTOPHER FERRARQO’S REPLY IN SUPPORT
5 || OF MOTION TO MODIFY CUSTODY, FOR RELOCATION OF MINOR CHILD,
6 || AND OTHER RELATED RELIEF to be served as follows:
7 o by placing same to be deposited for mailing in the United States Mail, in a
sealed envelope upon which first class postage was prepaid in Las Vegas,
8 Nevada; and/or
9 a pursuant to EDCR 7.26, to be sent via facsimile; and/or
4 10 = pursuant to EDCR 8.05, sent electronically via the Court’s electronic service
oa) system; the date and time of this electronic service is in place of the date and in
[, 11 place of deposit in the mail.
o
A g 12 |u] to be hand-delivered; . .
- o g '
w i £y 13 || to the attorney(s) listed below at the address and/or facsimile number indicated below:
" EENE .
W85 222 14 || Fric P. Roy, Fsq.
Zla ke, Robert Weatherford, Fsq.
Oy &zg 15| LAW OFFICES OF ERIC P. ROY
<Y 818 E. Charleston Blvd.
=< =~ 16 || Las Vegas, NV 89104
S I 5 Email: eric@ericroylawfirm.com
F;’ - 17 robert@ericroylawfirm.com
E 18 || Attorney for Plaintiff Sandra Lynn Nance

19

21 An employee of Hutch#Son & Steffen, LLC

22

23

24

25

26

27

28
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MCCARTHY & HOLTHUS, LLP
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
9510 WEST SAMARA AVENUE, SUITE 200

LASVEGAS, NV £9117
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is the purchaser, the sheriff S;hall credit Plaintiff’s bid with the total sum with interest
and cost accruing subsequent to this judgment, or such part of it, to pay the bid in full.

(7) On filing the certificate of sale, the sheriff shall distribute the proceeds of the sale, so
far as they are sufficient, by paying: the reasonable expenses of taking possession,
mainteining, protecting and leasing the Property, the costs and fees of the foreclosure
sale, including reasonable trustee’s fees, applicable taxes and the cost of title insurance
and, lo the extent provided in the legally enforceable terms of the morigage or lien, any
advances, reasonable atlomey’s [ees and other legal expenses incurred by the
foreclosing creditor and the person conducting the foreclosure sale; (b) satisfaction of
the obligation being enforced by the foreclosure sale; (c) satisfaction of obligations
secured by any junior mortgages or liens on the property, in their order of priority; (d)
payment of the balance of the proceeds, if any, to thc debtor or the debtor’s successor
in interest.

(8) On filing the certificate of sale, Defendants, and all persons claiming by, through or
under them, or any of them, be foreclosed of and forever barred from any and all right,
title, claim, interest, or lien in of to the Property or with respect thereto except such
rights of redemption as they may have by law and with the exception of any super

priority lien rights held by any Defendant pursuant to NRS 116.3116;

(%) For any other further rglief as this court deems just and proper.
DATED this_{ £ day of 2014,

DISTRICE COURT JUDGE
ag

McCarthy & Holthus, KLP
Janj¢e Sacovino, Esq. (SBMHF11612)

NV-13-543952-TUD
DEFT0259

Docket 72454 Document 2017-15266
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EXHIBIT “1”

LEGAL DESCRIPTION ATTACHED AS EXHIBIT A

NV-13-543952-TUD
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Branch :FLV,User :CON2 Commeat: " ‘Station 14 :UTSB

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Lon Theee Hosdred Two (502) in Bldck Thees (3) as shown on the FIRAL MAF DF
SLIVIMERLI VILLAGE 20-PARCELSE, F, O - PHASE !, on fik in Book 121 of Plats,
Pagh 95, md aremded by that certain Certificats of Amendment Kecorded Apsil 06, 2005t
Book 20060408 25 Dodument Mo: 00442 in the Offies of the: County Resarder of Clark

County, Nevadz,

CLARENY Page 16 of 22 Printed on 5/24/2012 1.27:25 AM

Document: DOT 2007.0327.2559
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At A Glance - Portledge SL ol

Page 1 of 2

ENROLELMENT

CLASS OF 2013
STUDRENT/FACULTY RATIO

Upper School Grades §-12 Tete-1
Middle School Grades 4-8 7-to-1
Lower Schosl Grades PN, N, PK 4-to-1
Grades K-5 6101

FACULTY

Portledge employs 62 full time and five pan-time teachers
Teachers with advansed deprees 42
On average, teachers have served 15 yeaes in educanon

COLLEGE COUNSELING PINLOSOIrHY

Our college eonnscling philosophy is an extension of the Portledge mission. We are a college preparatory school and we expect all
studeats o apply and be aczepled 1o four-year colleges. Seme studenss may alse chonse 1o pursuc 2 gap year aficr such sceeptance is
complete. We believe the callege telection process to be mivate and individualized one wlere students engoge in eamest self-reflection
and take responsibility for the application procexs.

TH

Our tors offer guid os students seck the appropnate {it for a collsge based upon personal cotenia and inferests. We encourage o
healthy sudent-led, educationally sound and faculty-appropnate approach to the search process. As students embark on this college path
and life beyond, our goal i3 in provide a solid foundation upon which they can bezgme seli-relisnt, confident and empowered involved
members of soviety Their passion and p will enh their role as engaged citizens of the world

¥

NOTABLE CHANGES IN THE CURRICULUM

Portedge has applied 10 offer the Intemational Bocealaurente Diploma Program in the eleventh and twellth grades. In the Middle School,
nur approsch ta pedagnpy has shifed to b maate spudent | ahout inquiry through project-hused leaming. Fouryears ago in the
Lower School, Portiedge began to offer the Reggin Emelia Program in early childhond and [y wilh Harvard’s Project Zero
program to inspire keaming in grades 1.5,

MINDFULNLESS

A tiew progiam 1o Pordedpe arsund character and community caring was introduced inin the Lower School in 2033, Mindfulneu
programs wili be expanded in 2014 o the Middle and Upper Schools. Jn addition, facuhy and atministration will also be offered
mindfulness training

ACADEMIC CALENDAR

The 2014-13 Upper and Middle Schogl calendas is based upon trimesters with a final grade being reperted in each class. Intenm grades are
also posted. The daily schedule has been chanped 1 o modified block schedule where classes rotate o » seven-day mode). Thesc lonper

hitp://www.portledge.org/pages/about-us/at-a-glance

DEFTO0262
6/16/2015
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At A Glance - Portledge S\ Lol

elass periods will allow for deeper study in maze extensive research during s class period. This in turn will lend itself 10 2 more inquiry-
based mpproach,

21ST CENTURY SCHOOQL BY DESIGN

L Global Program
Building sustminable relationships with schools overseas is a vital component of 215t century Jeaming. To this end, Pordedge partners with
schools in:

= Buston Arsizio, ltaly
« St Petershurg, Rutsia
» Tatlouse, France

* Barcelona, Spain

Wew partncrships are bring sought in Buznps Aires, Argenting; Cardiff, Walcs; and Shanghai, China.

I, Portledge Learaing Pathways Program
This program pairs the diverse talents of cur students with local businesscs and other noneprofits. These partnerships expose students toa
variety of alternative leamning experiences indluding special intorest internships and travel A sampie of partmerships and programs include:

*Grots Anatomy with Wintheop-University Huspitst
~Marine Dialogy with the Waterfrant Center
~Nanotechnology with the New Yurk Jastitute of Technology
Studio Art with Tilles Center lor the Performning Aris
*Robotics

ACCREDITATION MEMBERSLILP
Portledg = is scaredited by the New Vork State Association of Independent Schools (NYSAIS) and is a member of the National
Asspciatian of Independent Schoals (NAIS) and the Natlural Associativg for Collepe Admtission Counsding (MACAC)

DIVERSITY STATEMENT

Portledge Scheol belicves that diversity and inclusion ate csseatial to a 2151 cenmury comezunity of intelicetus] and personal
deyelopment, We helicve that the suppen for diversity wilk enhance the school’s ability to implemient Its mission of preparing studcots fur
life-long Jewming,. Portledpe offcrs a warm, inclusive comnimiry thar chellenges all forms of discrisminalion including race, color, natipnal
origin, sexual prientation, gendet identity, socic-ceonomic level, and religion.

NON-DISCRIMINATION STATEMENT
Portedge School docs not diseriminare on the basis of race, color, national origin, sexual cricntation, gendsridzntity, socio-cconcmic
fevel, of seligion, in the administrabion of its ¢ducational policies, admissions policies, fumncial aid decisions, ad extracuzricular

programs. Portledge also prohibits discrimination on the basis of social identificrs in the employinent of faculty, administration and 11afT

http://www.portledge.org/pages/about-us/at-a-glance

Page 2 of 2

DEFT0263
6/16/2015
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

SANDRA LYNN NANCE,

Appellant, Electronically Filed
v May 08 2017 04:08 p.m.
' Elizabeth A. Brown
CHRISTOPHER MICHAEL Clerk of Supreme Court
FERRARQ Supreme Court NoZ2454

Respondent. District Court No. D426817

APPEAL FROM ORDER GRANTING RELOCATION AND MODIFYING
CHILD CUSTODY

Eighth Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada
In and for the County of Clark
THE HONORABLEDENISE L. GENTILE
DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

APPELLANT'S APPENDIX —VOL. 3

Emily McFarling, Esq.
Nevada Bar Numbe&d08567
McFarling Law Group
6230 W. Desert Inn Roatlas Vegas, NV 89146
Phone: (702) 5651335 Fax: (702) 7328385
eservice@mcfarlinglaw.com

Attorney for AppellanSandra Lynn Nance
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INDEX OF APPELLANT'S APPENDIX

VOLUME: BATES NUMBER:

1 AA00001 — AA00250
2 AA00251-AA00500
3 AA00501-AA00750
4 AA00751-AA01000
S AA01001- AA01250

6 AA01251-AA01393



ALPHABETICAL INDEX OF APPELLANT'S APPENDIX
VOL. | DATE PLEADING BATES NO.
1 03/15/10 | Complaint for Divorce AA00001-
AA00005
1 04/29/10 | Court Minues AA00027
1 05/06/10 | Court Minutes AA0028
AA00029
1 11/21/11 | Court Minutes AA0009596
3 02/02/16 | Court Minutes AA00592
AA00593
1 03/26/11 | Custody Evaluation by John Paglini, Psy.lD,| AAO0097-
00180
1-3 06/19/15 | Defendant Christopher Ferraro's Apperidi | AAO0230
Motion to Modify Custody, for Relocation of | AA00532
Minor Child, and Other Related Relief
6 01/13/16 | Defendant Christopher Ferraro’s Motion In | AA01382-
Limine #2 AA1393
1 06/19/15 | Defendant Christopher Ferraro's Motion to | AA0O019%
Modify Custody, forRelocation of Minor AA00229
Child, and Otkr Related Relief
3 08/11/15 | Defendant Christopher Ferraro's Reply in | AAO0582-
Support of Motion to Modify Custody, for AA00590
Relocation of Minor Child, and Other Related
Relief
4 07/21/16 | DefendantMotion to Reopen Trial or in the | AAO0831-
Alternative for New Trial Limited to Hear AA00864
Testimony of Desmond Nance
4-5 08/05/16 | Defendant's Closing Brief AA00897-
AA01185
6 08/15/16 | Defendant's Reply to Motion to Reopen Trial AA01335
or in the Alternative for New Trial Limited to| AA01341
Hear Testimony of Desmond Nance and
Opposition to Plaintiff's Countermotion for
Attorney's Fees
6 02/15/17 | Notice of Appeal AA01380

1 Submitted under seal subject to Court approval.




AA01381

VOL. | DATE PLEADING BATES NO.
6 01/27/17 | Notice of Entry of Findings of Fact, AA01342
Conclusions of Law and Order, filed 01/27/1 AA01379
5-6 08/10/16 | Opposition to Motion to Reopen Trial or in thh AA01186-
Alternative for New Trial, filed 08/10/16 AA01311
3 08/04/15 | Plaintiff's Opposition to Defendant’s Motion | AAO0533
to Modify Custodyfor Relocation of Minor | AAO0581
Child, and Other Related Relief and
Countermotio for Confirmation of Primary
Physical Custodian; Modification of Child
Support; Strike Chris' Motion as Defective;
and Reasonable Attorney Fees and Costs
4 08/05/16 | Plaintiff's Closing Argument AA00865
AA00896
1 03/15/10 | Plaintiff's Motion for Permission to Return thl AAOOOO6-
Minor Child to the State of Nevada; UCCJEAAA00026
Hearing; for an Order Awarding Plaintiff
Primary Physical Custory (sicjupervised
Visitation; for a Pick Yy Order; Child Support
Back Child Support; for Plaintiff's Legal Cos
Future Attorney's Fees; and Other Related
Relief
1 04/08/11 | Stipulation and Order AA00030
AA00094
1 11/30/12 | Stipulaton and Order re Parenting Plan AA00181-
AA00198
6 08/12/16 | Supplement to Opposition to Defendant's | AA01312
Motion to Reopen Trial or in the Alternative | AA01334
for New Trial Limited to Hear Testimony of
Desmond Nance, filed 08/12/16
3 06/27/16 | Trial Testimony Transcript dated June 27, | AAO0593
2016 AA00696
34 06/28/16 | Trial Testimony Transcript dated June 28, | AAOO697-
2016 AA00764
4 06/29/16 | Trial Testimony Transcript dated June 29, | AAO0765%
2016 AA00830
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